
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Notice of Meeting 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
Councillor Dale Birch (Chair) 
Nicola Airey, Frimley CCG (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Dr Gareth Barnard 
Philip Bell, Involve 
Nicholas Durman, Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 
Neil Bolton-Heaton, Healthwatch 
Dr Annabel Buxton, Clinical Lead (Bracknell Forest) Frimley CCG 
Alex Gild, Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 
Susan Halliwell, Bracknell Forest Council (Chief Executive) 
Jane Hogg, Frimley Health NHS Foundation Trust 
Andrew Hunter, Bracknell Forest Council (Place, Planning and 
Regeneration) 
Sonia Johnson, Bracknell Forest Council (Children's Social Care) 
Stuart Lines, East Berkshire Public Health 
Melanie O'Rourke, Bracknell Forest Council (Adult Social Care) 
Dave Phillips, Bracknell Forest Safeguarding Board 
Jonathan Picken, Bracknell Forest Safeguarding Board 
David Radbourne, South Central Sub Region NHS 
Grainne Siggins, Bracknell Forest Council (People) 
Heema Shukla, Bracknell Forest Council (Public Health) 
Fidelma Tinneny, Berkshire Care Association 
Thursday 1 December 2022, 2.00  - 4.00 pm 
Zoom Meeting 

 

 

Agenda 
All councillors at this meeting have adopted the Mayor’s Charter  

which fosters constructive and respectful debate. 

Item Description Page 
 
1.  Apologies   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members. 
Reporting: ALL 

 

 
2.  Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are 
withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring 
Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest to 
the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when the 
interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be 

 



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the 
meeting. 
Reporting: ALL 

 
3.  Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which the chairman decides are urgent. 
Reporting: Joanna Gibbons 

 

 
4.  Minutes from Previous Meeting  5 - 12 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Board held 
on  
Reporting: ALL 

 

 
5.  Matters Arising 

Reporting: ALL 
 

 
6.  Public Participation   

 QUESTIONS: If you would like to ask a question you must arrive 15 minutes 
before the start of the meeting to provide the clerk with your name, address 
and the question you would like to ask. Alternatively, you can provide this 
information by email to the clerk at committee@bracknell-forest.gov.uk at 
least two hours ahead of a meeting. The subject matter of questions must 
relate to an item on the Board’s agenda for that particular meeting. The clerk 
can provide advice on this where requested. 
 
 
PETITIONS: A petition must be submitted a minimum of seven working days 
before a Board meeting and must be given to the clerk by this deadline. 
There must be a minimum of ten signatures for a petition to be submitted to 
the Board. The subject matter of a petition must be about something that is 
within the Board’s responsibilities. This includes matters of interest to the 
Board as a key stakeholder in improving the health and wellbeing of 
communities.  
Reporting: Joanna Gibbons 

 

 
7.  Frimley ICS Strategy Update   

 To provide an Update on the Frimley ICS Strategy Update. 
Reporting: Nicola Airey 

 

 
8.  Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plans  13 - 48 

 To ensure the Health & Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plans align with the ICS 
strategy and approve them accordingly. 
Reporting: Andrew Hunter, Heema Shukla 

 

 
9.  Winter Plan   

mailto:committee@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 To review winter planning arrangements. 
Reporting: Helen Single, Grainne Siggins 

 

 
10.  SEND Programme Update  49 - 58 

 To receive the latest update on the SEND Programme. 
Reporting: Cheryl Eyre 

 

 
11.  Better Care Fund Plan   

 To receive an update on the Better Care Fund Plan. 
Reporting: Sarah Van Heerde, Helen Single 

 

 
12.  Agency Updates 

Reporting: ALL 
 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted.  Please 
contact Derek Morgan, 01344 352044, derek.morgan@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so that any 
special arrangements can be made. 
Published: 23 November 2022 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
7 SEPTEMBER 2022 
2.00 - 4.00 PM 
  

Present: 
Councillor Dale Birch (Chair) 
Nicola Airey, Frimley CCG 
Councillor Dr Gareth Barnard 
Philip Bell, Involve 
Dr Annabel Buxton, Clinical Lead (Bracknell Forest) Frimley CCG 
Stuart Lines, East Berkshire Public Health 
Melanie O'Rourke, Bracknell Forest Council (Adult Social Care) 
Dave Phillips, Bracknell Forest Safeguarding Board 
Grainne Siggins, Bracknell Forest Council (People) 
Heema Shukla, Bracknell Forest Council (Public Health) 
Timothy Wheadon, Bracknell Forest Council (Chief Executive) 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Andrew Hunter 
Sonia Johnson 

64. Declarations of Interest  
There were no declarations of interest.  

65. Urgent Items of Business  
Election of Vice Chairman: 

       Resolved that Nicola Airey be elected for the rest of the municipal year. 

66. Minutes from Previous Meeting  
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2022 were approved as a correct record. 

67. Matters Arising  
There were no matters arising. 

68. Public Participation  
There were no items submitted for public participation. 

69. Frimley Update on the ICS and the ICB Process  
It was noted that the ICS (Integrated Care System) Strategy was in the process of 
being refreshed.   
  
The Integrated Care System included health partners, local authorities, and others.  
ICB was the Integrated Care Board.   
  

5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

It was noted that the strategy was first published in 2019.  It was stated that despite 
the refresh, the strategy was not expected to be changed fundamentally as it was 
likely that there would be the same outcomes such as improving healthy life and 
reducing inequalities which would mean that the strategic ambitions would stay the 
same.  It was noted that the strategy would need to be refreshed by December 2022. 
  
It was highlighted for consideration whether there would be any further opportunities 
for more Section 75 arrangements which would improve relationships.   
  
It was understood that one of the focus points for the strategy over the next few 
months would be research into the work completed along with the strategic ambitions 
and questions regarding how they could be enhanced.   
  
It was noted one of the big roles of the ICP was the development of the ICS strategy.  
It was also mentioned that the ICP would not meet regularly but they would hold 
meetings when necessary.  It was noted that there was an additional requirement for 
the ICS to share its capital resource plan.   
  
A roadmap of key dates for the ICP was also produced and would be shared.  It was 
noted as of 6 September 2022, the ICP itself had met twice and all the directors of 
the ICS had been appointed which essentially meant that the leadership team would 
be in place as of the next week.   
  
In response to questions, the following point had been noted: 

       One of the challenges for the board was to ensure that those organisations 
that were not represented on the board would still be engaged and that 
information would still flow through to them.  It was suggested that two 
different routes may be used; the first route would be through the borough 
representative feeding information through the borough get-togethers and the 
second route would be through Nicola Airey getting briefed from the point of 
view of an NHS executive. 

70. Health & Wellbeing Strategy - Priorities 2, 3 & 4  
It was noted that the update was regarding the delivery of the outcomes from the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
  
Appendix one showed the number of outcomes provided from the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy across the 6 priorities and their collaboration in terms of funding.  
It was noted that there had been a total of 37 outcomes.   
  
It was noted that the research into how the improvements and outcomes could be 
delivered had been coproduced by all partners. 
  
It was noted that as seen in many of the outcomes, the first year had focused on 
establishing the targeted milestones which would help achieve the outcome 
measures.   
  
In response to questions, the following point had been noted: 

       When researching the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, there had been 
sponsors allocated to each of the priority groups.  It was noted that all priority 
groups had a core group which consisted of partners, who would then report 
to members of the board. 

  

6



 

 

71. Healthwatch Review of Access to GP Practices  
It was noted that Healthwatch was used to listen to and obtain the views of the 
residents to then report back on the findings. 
  
It was noted that the Access to GP Practices Project merged during Covid-19.  The 
reason for this project was many residents found it difficult to access primary care.  
Due to this, the Healthwatch managers had decided this was a sensitive issue and 
wanted to create a measured and balanced approach. 
  
It was understood that the team had noticed there was a negative media sentiment 
and that the GPs were busy with the vaccine programme along with there being a 
backlog of treatments which was why it was important to recognise a collaboration 
was essential when understanding the bigger picture.   
  
The Regional Working Group provided support to establish the programme.  This 
included liaising with GPs, Practice Managers, CQC, Reception Staff and more 
across the Frimley footprint and other Healthwatch’s.   
  
It was noted that a practice staff survey had been circulated with 250 responses 
received.  The public facing survey had resulted in several thousand responses with 
1,000 responses across East Berkshire and 347 responses from Bracknell Forest. 
  
The main issues found were the following: 

       Long telephone queues as there had been a large amount of feedback 
received regarding the time it took to speak to the surgeries as well as the 
availability of consultations.   

       There had also been mixed responses regarding telephone consultations as 
some members stated they preferred consultations over the phone because it 
was quick and efficient whereas others stated they preferred a face-to-face 
approach.   

       Regarding the online services, some members preferred the convenience of 
accessing the services online.  However, others preferred the personal 
approach along with digital inclusion being a factor.   

       It was noted there was an issue with triaging as many patients were not aware 
of the term triaging. 

  
Regarding the frontline staff, there had been 112 staff members who had responded, 
and they stated that patients should be aware of the following: 

       GP practices were pressured and overwhelmed. 
       It would be easier to try alternative routes before contacting the surgeries 

such as contacting pharmacies and 111.   
       Be prepared to give a clear description of symptoms over the phone. 
       How triage works which meant knowing that receptionists would ask 

questions. 
       Booking appointments online and over telephones and the time it could take. 
       Behaviour towards staff. 

  
Based on information gathered, the patients’ recommendations were: 

       New phone systems or increase the number of call handlers to take the 
number of incoming calls. 

       Phones that would have access to a third person in the consultation.   
       Dedicated phoneline for diabetic nurses in the surgeries. 
       Dedicated line for registered carers. 

7



 

 

       Continue to review pre-recorded messages. 
       Implement phone queue systems as not all surgeries had this. 
       Staggered lunch time breaks so staff members of the surgery would be 

always available.   
       Research into the efficiency of call handling to prevent queues in the future. 
       Appointments in consultations – more specific timeslots such as an hour 

window instead of stating morning or afternoon. 
       Patients being offered the choice of whether they would prefer a face-to-face 

meeting. 
       Alternative methods to cancelling appointments rather than calling. 
       Review the online forms as most questions were repetitive. 
       Communication – inform patients as soon as possible about changes to 

practice staff and more. 
  
The full report had been published in July 2022.  Different reports had been collated 
from Healthwatch.  After collecting the information from the patients and staff, a 
communication toolkit would be created to support the GP practices.   
  
Healthwatch had also reviewed all the Frimley websites as well as contacting all the 
contact numbers provided.  The recommendations based on their research were: 

       Telephone messages could be more welcoming and shorter. 
       Websites would need a standardised template as they were all very different, 

and some websites were difficult to navigate. 
       Websites needed to explain the importance of triaging. 

  
It was noted that the local NHS managers had decided to implement the following to 
support patients: 

       8,854 additional appointments added for urgent care practitioners had been 
made across Bracknell Forest as well as providing home visits. 

       Additional GP nurse capacity during the weekends. 
       Enhanced care and prevention. 
       Additional 1,825 appointments for high-risk patients who had not been able to 

be seen in primary care in the past six months. 
       Health checks for anxiety and depression in young adults. 
       Improving uptake of surgical screening. 
       Develop communication with the public. 
       Develop wellbeing and self-care booklets. 

  
Further information could be found in the report.   
  
It was noted that the next review would be taking a look at dentistry. 
  

72. Better Care Fund End of Year Report 2021/22  
It was noted the first paper was to bring to the attention of the board, the 2021/22 end 
of year report for the Better Care Fund. The recommendation was for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board to approve the report as it had already been signed off by the 
Executive Director: People.  
  
It was noted that in 2021/22, there had been a requirement to report against five 
metrics and the first one was avoidable admissions at the time of reporting as there 
was no available data. However, it was understood that the target of 630 had been 
achieved with a measure of 583 avoidable admissions. For 2022/23, there were 

8



 

 

targets of 9.4% for 14 days and 4.5% length of stay for 21 days or more. This target 
had not been met for Bracknell along with many other regions. The figures achieved 
were 10.5% for 14 days and 5.6% for length of stays. It was understood that the 
reason was due to staff absence due to Covid-19 and additional complexity of cases. 
  
It was noted that key successes that were attributed to driving the enablers for 
integration was the opening of the new Heathlands Intermediate Care Service which 
allowed for a step up, step down facility where the therapist from the Bracknell ICS 
would be able to support Heathlands and link in with wider teams to support smooth 
and timely discharge and flow and the effective partnership working across from the 
ICS Bracknell Forest Council and Frimley Health Care Foundation Trust to develop 
and mobilize the integrated care home for dementia, nursing and intermediate care. 
  
It was understood that there had been key challenges which were staff absences due 
to Covid-19 sickness as well as recruitment to vacant posts across the workforce. 
There had been difficulty in recruiting in reach Matron role as well as reablement 
support workers and therapists along with issues around complex discharge. It was 
noted there was an increase in complex cases such as delirium and confusion. 
  
In response to questions, the following point had been noted: 

 The length of stay would not be recorded. It was noted no rationale had been 
given behind the metrics. It was understood that it was advised to monitor the 
metrics but there was no requirement to officially report against those metrics 
as the metrics were discussed between NHS and ADAS. 

  
It was noted that the report had been signed off and approved. 

73. Update of the development of the Better Care Fund Plan 2022/23  
It was noted that the plan was in draft form.  It was noted that there had been 
feedback provided from the regional quality assurance process.  Based on the 
feedback, most parts were reasonably comprehensive, and the strong partnership 
working had additional requirements which would need to be expanded, such as the 
impact the Better Care Fund had on protected characteristics and highlighting how 
the aging well forum and better care fund worked well together.  It was noted that the 
high impact change model self-assessment would be due on 30 September 2022 
which would be brought into the narrative of the plan. 
  
It was noted that the purpose of the paper was for the Board to note the development 
of the 2022/23 plan and to feedback any comments along with the board to give 
delegated authority to the Executive Director: People to sign the Bracknell Forest 
Plan, which would need to be submitted by the 26 September 2022. 
  

74. Annual Public Health Report  
It was noted that the annual public health report was a report that the Directors of 
Public Health and their predecessors had provided on local areas, for 120 years or 
more.  It was understood that in the Victorian era, annual reports were often used to 
describe illnesses and symptoms along with issues and challenges that were faced at 
the time.  These would have been issues such as infectious diseases, tuberculosis, 
or cholera, for example.   
  
It was noted that with the advent of the joint strategic needs assessment, much of the 
data on various diseases of local areas had been provided through that route.  It was 

9



 

 

understood that this then enabled the annual public health reports of the Director of 
Public Health to focus on different areas. 
  
It was understood that the overriding aim of the report was to provide an opportunity 
to highlight issues and if relevant to local communities, make recommendations to 
improve overall health and wellbeing. 
  
The decision to focus on climate change was understood to be multifactorial.  It was 
noted that at the time the report was being developed, the climate crisis was in the 
news and still would be in terms of the cost of living crisis and the energy costs.  It 
was noted that this was also relevant to Bracknell Forest because of the Bracknell 
Forest Climate Strategy, which had been published earlier. 
  
It was noted that the focus on food was where individuals and organisations could 
contribute to climate challenges, and so there was a collaboration across all of 
Berkshire which meant that there were three authorities in the east and three in the 
West to produce a joint report.  It was understood that the purpose of the title of the 
report, which was helping tackle climate change, one meal at a time was to 
emphasise the actions created at different levels to contribute to the area.  It was 
noted that there was also relevance to the time in which the report was produced to 
the recovery from Covid-19 and the ongoing challenge regarding overweight and 
obesity, particularly in childhood obesity.  It was understood that these points had 
been mentioned within the report. 
  
It was understood that a key aim was to make the report engaging, accessible and 
relevant.  It was noted that this had completed through the use of case studies and 
videos on local projects.  The case studies provided examples of local initiatives 
being undertaken through various organisations.  There was also the stop and think 
logo which would direct to areas where there would be an increased focus along with 
prompting areas where individuals and organizations would want to take further 
action.  It was noted that many of the examples used in the report direct ways in 
which collective action could be undertaken whilst providing useful templates. 
  
It was noted this was a scheme whereby food waste was minimised by ensuring food 
was donated by supermarkets to support people who may be in need.  It was also 
understood that composting food waste could divert it from landfill.   
  
The document was published annually and may take different forms.  The intention 
going forward would be to have more of an East Berkshire focus which would reflect 
the new setup of the public health system which had split into east and west areas 
with directors covering each area where there had previously been a single director 
covering the whole of Berkshire. 

75. Agency Updates  
It was noted that the pharmaceutical needs assessment (PNA), which was a statutory 
requirement for the Health and Wellbeing Board, came to the board as a draft. 
However, a copy had been finalised which would need to be signed off and one of the 
suggestions was to circulate the PNA to the members of this board. It was requested 
for all members to view the document, provide any feedback and if members were 
satisfied with the PNA, then to virtually sign the document.  
  
It was agreed that the document should be circulated and virtually signed by the 
board members. 

10



 

 

CHAIRMAN 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL SENSITIVE (COMMERCIAL)/OFFICIAL SENSITIVE (PERSONAL) 

To: Bracknell Forest Health and Wellbeing Board  
1 Dec 2022 

  
 

 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Delivery Plans  
Director of Place, Planning and Regeneration 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Board published its Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWBS) for 2022-2026 
Bracknell Forest Health and Wellbeing Strategy (bracknell-forest.gov.uk). The 
outcomes-based framework for the strategy has six priority areas and four cross 
cutting themes. The JHWBS aims to deliver 37 outcomes for improving the health 
and wellbeing of residents across the five key priorities. The list of outcomes is 
attached in appendix 1. The sixth priority is a strategic principle on collaboration, 
planning and seeking funding opportunities on new and emerging health and 
wellbeing issues.  

1.2 The Board approved the approach and format for the delivery plan at the September 
meeting with recommendation to bring the plans to the December meeting for 
approval to enable implementation of the plan from January 2023.  

Recommendation 

1.3 The report presents the delivery plans attached as appendix 2 and seeks a decision  

a) to approve the plans; 
b) to publish the delivery plans subject to any minor amendments to be 

agreed with the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

2 Supporting Information 

2.1 The delivery plans are co-produced with a multiagency core delivery group 
established for each priority and a wider stakeholder group identified to work with on 
the delivery plan.  

2.2  The delivery plans are based on a combination of logic model and improvement 
methodology. In logic model the key tasks (inputs) and the outputs are clearly 
defined. The improvement methodology is an agile framework that allows constant 
review of the outputs defined as drivers of change using a plan, do, study, act 
(PDSA) cycle. By applying a PDSA cycle, the delivery group can monitor progress 
and make appropriate changes as required to ensure the desired outcomes are likely 
to be delivered. The delivery plans are attached as Appendix 2. 

2.3 Each priority area is assigned to a Bracknell Forest public health team member to 
coordinate and manage. The existing governance structure for the priority area is 
applied with final reporting to this board.   The governance framework for monitoring 
the progress is attached in appendix 3. 

3 Equalities Impact Assessment 

13

Agenda Item 8

https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-06/bracknell-forest-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-2022-to-2026_0.pdf


OFFICIAL SENSITIVE (COMMERCIAL)/OFFICIAL SENSITIVE (PERSONAL) 

3.1 An EIA was conducted on the JHWBS. The delivery plans are expected to embed 
health inequalities as a cross-cutting theme. The final delivery plan presented will 
include an integrated health inequalities and equalities impact assessment.  

4 Strategic Risk Management Issues 

4.1 Currently no strategic risk is identified as all activity is funded through current funding 
streams and workforce. Any changes in health and wellbeing priorities driven by the 
office of health improvement and disparities (OHID), UK Health Security Agency 
(UKHSA) or by NHS will need to be considered if they are likely to divert resources 
away from actions within current HWB priorities, and will be reported back to the 
Board. 

 
Contact for further information 
Heema.shukla@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Tel: 01344 355365 
 

14

mailto:Heema.shukla@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Appendix 1 
 
Priority 1 

1. Improve personal wellbeing/happiness 
2. Reduce anxiety and depression in all children and young people  
3. Reduce the feeling of being alone and excluded 
4. Increase the number of commissioned services that have performance matrices 

measuring improvement in emotional wellbeing 
5. Improve the experience of children, young people and their parents in navigating the 

system and services 
6. Increase number of peer support groups for children and young people 
7. Improve awareness of emotional health, self-help and services among children, 

young people and their families 
8. Reduce stigma associated with emotional health 

 
 
Priority 2 

1. Reduce eating disorders and disordered eating at population level 
2. Reduce self-harm in children and young people 
3. Increase in number of schools promoting mental health and wellbeing 
4. Improve social, educational, and physical health outcomes for children and young 

people with a diagnosis of 
1. mental illness 
5. Improve the experience of children, young people, and their parents in navigating the 

system and services 
6. Reduce stigma associated with mental health 
7. Increase in awareness of service provision by need among all frontline workers and 

the public 
8. Increase in ease of access of appropriate services 
9. Reduce smoking in people with mental illness 
10. Reduce obesity in people with mental illness 
11. Increase the number of people with mental illness who are supported with recovery 

 
Priority 3 

1. Increase number of different types of activities that provide opportunities for all ages 
to connect with other  

1. people in their neighbourhoods and across the borough 
2. Improve the awareness of the community assets map among all providers and 

provide training on how to use  
3. it in their work to connect people to local activities 
4. Increase awareness of community map and its use by residents  
5. Increase non-GP referrals to public health social prescribing  
6. Increase the awareness of services offered that supports collaborative practice for 

appropriate referrals 
 
Priority 4 

1. Reduce and manage outbreaks of infectious disease across Bracknell Forest  
2. Reduce infectious disease-related morbidity and mortality with reduced numbers of 

related deaths and  
1. hospital admissions and inpatients  
2. An engaged community that not only informs local communication and action but 

also takes responsibility for  
3. reducing the transmission of COVID-19 and other communicable diseases  

15



4. High-risk settings for transmission are engaged and take responsibility for their role in 
reducing the risk of  

5. communicable disease infection  
6. Reduce winter-related morbidity and mortality  
7. Reduce the long-term health impacts of COVID-19 

 
 
Priority 5 

1. Improve health literacy of cardiovascular risk in target population 
2. Increase in offer and uptake of NHS health checks in target population  
3. Increase in offer and uptake in smoking cessation in target populations 
4. Increase in offer and uptake in weight management in target populations 
5. Increase universal offer of physical activity and healthy eating opportunities offered 

across all population  
6. Establish a system-wide joint Bracknell Forest healthy workplace programme  
7. Establish a whole-school approach to health in Bracknell Forest 
8. Reduce the variance in early detection, management and treatment for hypertension, 

diabetes and atrial  
1. fibrillation. 

 
 
 

16



 

Delivery Plans for the Health and Wellbeing Strategy-draft V01

17



Priority 1: Give all children the best start in life and support 
emotional and physical health from birth to adulthood 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AIMS 
1. To improve personal wellbeing/happiness 

2. To reduce anxiety and depression in all children and young people  

3. To reduce the feeling of being alone and excluded 

4. To increase the number of commissioned services that have performance matrices measuring improvement in emotional 
wellbeing 

5. To improve the experience of children, young people and their parents in navigating the system and services 

6. To increase number of peer support groups for children and young people 

7. To improve awareness of emotional health, self-help and services among children, young people and their families 

8. To reduce stigma associated with emotional health 
 
 
 
 

18



OBJECTIVES 

1. Work in partnership with residents and community groups/organisers to develop age appropriate creative and physical 
activity opportunities outside school to support health and wellbeing 

2. Improve the public health portal ‘Thrive’, by working with all stakeholders taking on board the lived experiences to enable 
children and their families to navigate the system with ease 

3. Work with the East Berkshire ‘Be Well’ campaign to ensure links are made with the local public health portal, providers and 
communities 

4. Work with schools, mental health support teams and school nurses to develop peer support groups that enable children and 
young people to speak about emotional problems without fear of stigma 

5. Work with early years, health visitors and voluntary services to develop peer support groups and activities to reduce feelings 
of loneliness and anxiety in new parents 

6. Review and improve the Make Every Contact Count (MECC) training to include appropriate material for emotional and 
mental health promotion, detection, and early intervention 

7. To develop a costed service model to meet the gap between general wellbeing, IAPT and CAMHS 

8. Make services inclusive by considering the role of a male parent and the relationship between dads and young boys. 

 

 

 

 

 

19



ACTION PLAN 
 

Key Tasks (input) Start 
date 

End date Outputs Process milestones and 
outcome indicators  

Year 1 
2023 

Year 2 
2024 

Year 3 
2025 

Year 4 
2026 

1. Develop and implement a 
CYP engagement plan to 
gain insights into 
participation in and 
attitudes to peer led social 
activities; and what would 
constitute a good offer of 
activities  

Jan 
2023 

Sept 
2023 

1. A detailed insights 
report on the social 
behaviours of CYP and 
views on what social 
activities CYP are likely 
to engage that supports 
emotional and physical 
wellness. 

Milestones 
a) Peer led process for 

engagement agreed 
b) Implement the 

insights methodology  
c) Analyses and report 

written up 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

2. Map existing opportunities 
and groups within 
Bracknell Forest for CYP 
and include in the 
community map- mapping 
under the 5 ways to 
wellbeing headings this 
includes get active and get 
creative 

Jan 
2023 

March 
2023 

1. A gap analyses of peer 
led social activities and 
networks that enable 
CYP to become 
emotionally resilient 
and improve their 
physical fitness. 

Milestones  
a) Baseline of current 

activities established 
b) Unmet need 

described  

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

3. Work with local community 
organisations and CYP to 
develop a network that 
builds on the current 
assets/offer  

Oct 
2023 

March 
2025 

1. Offer of diverse range 
of activities that meet 
the needs of diverse 
CYP community 
developed 

Milestone 
a) A CYP health and 

wellbeing network 
established 
 

Indicator 
a) Increase in number 

and type of assets 
b) Participation 

baseline and 
improvement (TBA)  

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

4. Undertake a review of the 
usage of the public health 
Thrive and Healthier 
Together webpages and 
using the information 
develop a survey and 

Jan 
2023 

March 
2024 

1. Users experience of 
navigating the 
webpages improved  

 

Milestone 
a) Baseline established 

(mar 2023) 
Indicator  

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

20



focus groups to improve 
the reach and experience 
of the user group  

a) Increase in positive 
feedback on the 
webpages 

 
5. Review current MHST 

model which uses CYP 
undergoing therapy to 
support others who might 
need support and build on 
this to include a wider 
network of peer led health 
and wellbeing support 

April 
2023 

March 
2025 

1. Emotional and mental 
health awareness 
increased in school 
setting and normalised 
similar to physical 
health  

Milestone 
a) Model agreed 
b) Implementation plan 

agreed  
 
Indicators 
a) Number of schools 

participating  
b) Number of peer led 

support groups 
formed 

Milestones 
achieved  

TBA TBA TBA 

6. Review the reach 
(engagement) with current 
0-5 year parent groups 
identifying what is working 
well, barriers in accessing 
the groups, identify gaps in 
provision.  

July 
2023 

June 
2024 

1. A report with 
recommendations to be 
considered by early 
years group 

Milestone  
a) Scope and 

specification of 
review agreed 

b) Appropriate provider 
procured 

c) Report received  
d) Next steps agreed  
 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

7. Review training offer and 
participation in parenting, 
emotional and mental 
health, breastfeeding and 
weaning courses  

Feb 
2023 

Dec 
2023 

1. Based on review, 
improved offer and 
participation rates  

Milestone 
a) Baseline established  
 
Indicator  
a) Percentage increase 

in participation from 
year 2 

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

8. Conduct a baseline review 
of CYP  services for 
inclusivity, in particular 
with regards to gender 
(male parent), 
neurodiversity and 
disability  

April 
2023 

June 
2024 

1. Based on review, plan 
to improve inclusivity  

Milestone 
a) Scope and service 

specification agreed 
b) Appropriate provder 

procured 
c)  Baseline 

established 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

21



 
Indicator 
a) Improvement  

participation and/or 
satisfaction  

9. Review refreshed local 
transformation plan to 
include actions relevant to 
delivering outcomes  

  TBA TBA TBA TBA TBA TBA 

10. Map and publish all 
available services that 
provide emotional health 
and wellbeing early mental 
health support (health 
commissioned, council 
commissioned services 
and voluntary and 
community sector) for 
families with SEND and 
analyse gaps to inform 
commissioning needs.   

  1. Needs based 
commissioning 
intentions/plan  

Milestones 
a) Mapping completed  
 
b) Commissioning 

intentions agreed 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

 
 
 

22



 
 

PRIORITY 2: promote mental health and improve the 
lives and health of people with mental health issues 
 

 

 

 

AIMS 

1. To reduce eating disorders and disordered eating at a population level  

2. To reduce self-harm in children and young people  

3. To increase number of schools promoting mental health and wellbeing  

4. To improve social, educational, and physical health outcomes for children and young people with a diagnosis of mental 
illness. 

5. To improve the experience of children, young people, and their parents in navigating the system and services 

6. To reduce stigma associated with mental health 

7. To improve ease of access of appropriate services 

8. To Increase awareness of service provision by need among all frontline workers and the public 

23



9. To reduce smoking in people with mental illness 

10. To reduce obesity in people with mental illness 
 
 
 
OBJECTIVES 

1. Plan and implement an action plan to reduce risk factors such as low self-esteem and body dissatisfaction targeting at-risk 
populations 

2. Increase awareness of disordered eating/eating disorders among frontline staff working with children 

3. Develop and implement multi-agency self-harm protocol 

4. Embedding mental health support teams (MHST) principles in all schools 

5. More collaborative working to create a shared culture and joined up service offer e.g., partnership working between school 
nurses and MHST 

6. Improving the ‘front door’ to current emotional health and wellbeing 

7. Develop a joint bespoke Bracknell Forest pledge to reduce mental health stigma 

8. Develop and offer mental health awareness training to all staff across the system 

9. Explore the development of an easy access, needs-based service directory and a public facing marketing and 
communication campaign to raise awareness of services available and how to access them 

10. Develop and implement a plan for an integrated healthy behaviour outreach service in mental health services 

11. Expand recovery service provision to meet existing and future demand 

24



ACTION PLAN 
 

Key Tasks (input) Start 
date 

End date Outputs Process milestones and 
outcome indicators  

Year 1 
2023 

Year 2 
2024 

Year 3 
2025 

Year 4 
2026 

1. Use behavioural insights to 
identify key risk factors in 
Bracknell Forest among 
those that have lived 
experience and 
professionals to support 
development of prevention 
plan 

Jan 
2023 

Oct 2023 1. An evidence-based 
population based 
universal and targeted 
intervention programme 
devised and planned 
based on findings of 
behavioural insights 
using theory of change 
approach 

2. Workshop with 
stakeholders to agree 
Year 2 and Year 3 
actions, outputs and 
indicators based on 
findings from 
behavioural insights 
report 

Milestones 
For output 1 
a) Project plan (service 

spec) developed and 
tendered (March 
2023) 

b) Project mobilised 
(April 23) 

c) Report submitted  
Sept 2023 
 

For output 2 
a) Next steps plan 

agreed (Oct 2023) 
 

Indicators  
TBC based on the 
behavioural insights 
report 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

2. Review and promote 
uptake of training 
programmes for early 
identification of eating 
disorders and timely 
referrals from all settings 
 

Jan 22 Ongoing 1. BEAT training for GP 
and primary care 
clinicians, nurses and 
other healthcare 
professionals 

2. MindEd Training on 
Eating Disorders to 
frontline staff 

3. Psychological 
Perspectives in 
Education and Primary 
Care (PPEP Care) 
training   

Indicators 
1. Number of GP and 

primary care 
clinicians trained 
other healthcare 
professionals in 
other settings 
completing training 

2. Number of school 
staff completing 
training  

3. Numbers 
undertaking PPEP 
training 

Milestones 
achieved 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TBA TBA TBA 

25



4. MSHT emotional and 
wellbeing Webinars  

4. Increase in numbers 
attending the 
webinars  

Baseline :17 

 
 
 
 
 
30 

3. Review current support 
that enables recovery for 
those suffering from eating 
disorders with those with 
lived experience and take 
appropriate actions to 
ensure appropriate 
recovery services are 
available in the community  

Jan 
2023 

ongoing Increase in offer and 
support for recovery from 
eating disorders or 
disordered eating  

Milestones 
a) Plan to promote 

current digital offers 
such as Support 
Hope and 
Recovery/Resource 
Online Network 
(SHaRON) platform 
with educational 
professionals 
(SHaRON Venus) 
and parents and 
carers (SHaRON 
Saturn) and Kooth  
agreed  

b) A co-produced plan 
for recovery support 
devised and 
implemented 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

4. Co-produce a holistic and 
place-based approach to 
responding to self-harm 
that is consistent with the 
forthcoming NICE 
(National Institute of 
Clinical Excellence) 
guidance 

Nov 
2022 

July 
2023 

1. Webinar launched and 
baseline data collected 

2. A series of reflective 
learning sessions for 
the CYP workforce who 
regularly work with 
children and young 
people - to allow brave 
spaces for 
professionals to 
establish a collective 
understanding of self-
harm 

Milestones 
 
1. Project plan (service 

spec) developed and 
tendered (November 
2022) 

2. Project mobilised 
(February 2023) 

3. Report submitted 
(June 2023)  

4. Next steps plan 
agreed (July 2023) 

 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

26



3. A report based on rapid 
review on practice, 
policy, and evidence on 
what works and 
analyses of inked data 
at local level. 

4. Next steps agreed 
 

Indicator on self-harm 
(Baseline 2020/21) 
 
a) Hospital admissions 

in 10-14 years 
Baseline 
292.9/100,000 

 
b) Hospital admissions 

in 15-19 years 
Baseline 
967.5/100,000 

 
 

5. Review the draft pan-
Berkshire multiagency self-
harm toolkit and adapt to 
Bracknell Forest based on 
local insights  

Dec 
2022 

April 
2024 

1. A local version of the 
pan Berkshire toolkit 
adopted for Bracknell 
Forest 

Milestones 
1. Learning from self-

harm workforce 
project is 
incorporated into 
plan (October 2023) 

2. Sign off by the 
Deputy Director of 
Public Health for 
Bracknell Forest 

3. Toolkit shared with 
settings such as 
education, CSC 
(April 2024) 

 
Indicators 
1. Number of 

professionals and 
residents accessing 
the toolkit 

 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

6. Continue to develop and 
embed the MHST Wave 5 
and 6 programmes' of 
learning and implementing 

Dec 
2022 

Sept 
2023 

1. Promotion of Get Help 
service to non-MHST 
schools continuing so 

Milestones 
1. Engagement with 

schools to provide 
feedback on healthy 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

27



the Early Evaluation of the 
Children and Young 
People's Mental Health 
Trailblazer Programme 
July 2021 across all 
schools 

that support can be 
accessed in place 

2. Plan for of a healthy 
schools programme 
using a whole school 
approach to promoting 
children and young 
people's mental health 
and wellbeing to be 
rolled out to schools 

schools’ approach 
(December 2022) 

2. All schools offered to 
participate in healthy 
school programme 
(September 2023) 
 

Indicators  
1. Number of children 

supported through 
MHST 

2. Number of children 
supported through 
Getting Help Service 

3. Number of parents 
and professionals 
attending webinars 
to increase 
awareness of 
emotional and 
mental health 
seminars  

4. Number of schools 
taking up Healthy 
Schools Programme 

7. Use the learning from the 
happiness hub (adult 
mental health community 
network) model to 
establish a CYP mental 
health network  

Jan 
2023 

Dec 
2023 

 A CYP community based 
mental health network 
established 

Establish a task and 
finish group including 
families and CYP with 
lived experience  
Agree a process and 
resources to develop and 
establish the network 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

8. Monitor and report Local 
transformation plans for 
reviewing referral 
pathways, triaging, risk-
management panels and 
signposting to services 
across the system        

  1. GP referrals to Early 
Help are streamlined.  

 
Further outputs to be 
established 

Milestones 
 
1. Early Help form is 

uploaded to DXS 
system 

 
 

Milestones 
achieved 

   

28



• Improving GP Access to 
Early Help 

• Review referral pathways, 
triaging, risk-management 
panels and signposting to 
services across the system 

• Review pathways for same 
day Urgent Care 

• Providers to flow ROMs as 
part of NHSE reporting 

• Berkshire Healthcare 
Foundation Trust to flow 
ROMS 

• Voluntary Sector to flow to 
ROMS 

 

Indicators 
 
Feedback from children 
and parents on their 
experience of accessing 
services and support 

9. Implement the delivery 
plan and evaluate a ‘front 
door’ aimed at children 
and young people to find 
appropriate services for 
low level emotional 
wellbeing and mental 
health (TBC as per ICS 
LTP refresh) 
 

TBA TBA TBC from refreshed 
ICS Local 
Transformation plan  

TBA TBA TBA TBA TBA 

10. Conduct a rapid desktop 
review of 
frameworks/standards 
used in mental health 
pledges and mental health 
promoting organisations, 
gain insights from local 
organisations and 
employees on pledge 
content to design a 
bespoke Bracknell Forest 

Nov 
22 

Dec 23 1. Options report based 
on rapid desktop review 

2. Insights report from 
local organisations and 
employees 

3. A Bracknell Forest 
Mental Health Pledge 
created.  

4. Support and training 
package developed to 
support signing the 
pledge  

Milestones 
1. Desktop review 

proposal agreed  
2. External provider 

commissioned to 
undertake 
engagement and 
gain insights from 
local organisations 
and employees 
(March 2023) 

Milestones 
achieved 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



Pledge and support 
required to implement it. 

5. Proposal for evaluation 
in culture developed 

3. A protype pledge 
tested and rolled out 
(Dec 2023) 
 

Indicators 
1. Number of 

organisations trained 
Baseline 0 
 

2. Number of 
organisations trained 
signed the pledge 
Baseline 0 
 

3. Change in 
organisational 
culture to promote 
and support mental 
health based on 
employee feedback 
survey 
Baseline No change 

 
 
 
 
 
20 
 
 
 
 
50%  

 
 
 
 
 
30 
 
 
 
 
60% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TBC 

 
 
 
 
 
50 
 
 
 
 
75% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TBC 

11. Commission an external 
provider to develop a 
bespoke mental health 
awareness training to be 
offered to customer facing 
staff including Retail staff, 
Library Staff, Parks staff, 
Housing staff, Museum 
and Leisure staff. 

Sept 
2022 

Jan 2023 1. An external provider 
secured, and course 
content agreed  

2. Training course dates 
announced 

3. Report on evaluation of 
practice and awareness 
of own mental health 
among attendees 
during training and in 
six and 12 months  

 

Milestones: 
1. Course slides and 

content approved 
and signed off.  
June 2022 

2. Communication 
plans to promote to 
audiences 
established and 
rolled out. 
July 2022 

3. Design evaluation 
matrix for pre and 
post training 
outcome measures 
and partnership 
working evaluation 

Milestones 
achieved 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



4. Train -the trainer- 
sessions completed 
and feedback on 
slides actioned. 

Indicators 
1. Number of customer-

facing workers 
enrolled in training. 
Baseline 0 

2. Number of 
participants with 
increased Mental 
Health Awareness. 
Baseline: no 
increase 

3. Number of 
participants who 
have used training 
outcomes in their 
role after 6months 
and 12 months. 
Baseline: 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
80 
 
 
 
 
75% 
 
 
 
 
40% 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
120 
 
 
 
 
85% 
 
 
 
 
50% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
180 
 
 
 
 
95% 
 
 
 
 
60% 

12. Mapping of current reach 
of lifestyle services to 
people living with 
emotional and mental 
health issues and 
conditions  

April 
2023 

March 
2024 

Increased offer and 
access of lifestyle 
services to enable 
people living with 
emotional and mental 
health conditions to be 
healthy  

Milestones 
a) Report findings from 

the mapping 
exercise 

b) Next steps to be 
determined based on 
the findings 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

 

 

 

 

31



PRIORITY 3: Create opportunities for individual and 
community connections, enabling a sense of belonging and 
the awareness that someone cares 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Aims 
1. To increase number of different types of activities that provide opportunities for all ages to connect with other people in their 

neighbourhoods and across the borough  

2. To improve the awareness of the community assets map among all providers and provide training on how to use it in their work 

to connect people to local activities  

3. To increase awareness of community map and its use by residents  

4. To increase non-GP referrals to public health social prescribing  

 

Objectives  
1. Review and relaunch an improved version of the current community map working with wider stakeholders 

2. Develop a marketing and training strategy for the community map  

3. Transform the public health social prescribing service to a community model 

4. Increase non-GP referrals to public health social prescribing  

5. Support creation of a network of community of practice 

32



ACTION PLAN 
 
Key Tasks (input) Start 

date 
End date Outputs Indicator and baseline Year 1 

2023 
Year 2 
2024 

Year 3 
2025 

Year 4 
2026 

1. Work with local organisations 
and communities to increase 
the offer and spread of 
accessible and diverse social 
activities which fall under the 
following categories:  

• Get Active 
• Get Creative 
• Get Help 
• Get Connected 
• Get Learning 

Oct 
2022 

Ongoing 
With 
quarterly 
monitoring 

1. Identify/increase in 
provision of social 
activities that meets the 
needs of all the different 
communities (defined by 
small areas or similar 
characteristics or health 
condition) 

2. Improved accessibility of 
the offer of social 
activities by increasing 
the number of community 
venues where access to 
transport is low 

3. Raised awareness of the 
dementia and other carer 
support offer in Bracknell 
working with providers, 
residents, and carers. 

 

1. Number of assets in 
community map August 
2022 baseline: 326 
activities 

2. Number of outreach 
venues that offer social 
activities Baseline: 10 

 
3. Number of promotional 
activities/awareness 
campaigns. Baseline: 20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

350 
 
 
 
13 
 
 
 
20 
 
 
 
 

400 
 
 
 
18 
 
 
 
25 
 
 
 

450 
 
 
 
21 
 
 
 
30 
 
 
 
 
 

500 
 
 
 
25 
 
 
 
35 

2. Use the Making Every Contact 
Count (MECC) training to 
recognise when individuals may 
be at risk of, or currently 
experiencing feelings of 
loneliness and/or isolation 
including how to signpost. 
 

April
2022 

Quarterly  1. Increased signposting 
and referrals to VCS 
organisations by all 
customer facing 
organisations  

2. Increase no. of frontline 
staff trained to have 
‘healthy conversations’  

1. Number of referrals 
tracked through JOY 
marketplace 
Baseline: 30 

 
2. Number of staff trained 

in MECC who have 
used healthy 
conversations in their 
role. Baseline: 12 

50 
 
 
 
 
30 

70 
 
 
 
 
50 

100 
 
 
 
 
75 

150 
 
 
 
 
100 

3. Increase use of Bracknell 
Forest Green spaces through 
green volunteering programme, 
and outdoor activities.  

 

Oct 
2022 

Quarterly  1. Improve resident’s 
feelings of self-esteem, 
confidence, and 
wellbeing 

2. Increase physical activity 
levels, social 
connections, wellbeing 
etc. 

1. Number of resident’s 
reporting an 
improvement. 
Baseline: 0 

2. Proportion who have 
made lifestyle 
changes. Baseline: 0 

 
60 
 
 
 
 
25% 

 
120 
 
 
 
 
30% 

 
150 
 
 
 
 
35% 

 
180 
 
 
 
 
40% 

33



4. Increase use of libraries and 
other adult learning places  

Nov 
2022 

Quarterly 1. A plan for drop-in 
sessions and group 
sessions by social 
prescribing team 
developed 

2. Training and support 
offer in place to support 
clients to run self-support 
groups 

1. Number of sessions in 
library and numbers 
attending  
Baseline 0 

2. Number of self 
supported groups 
established  
Baseline 0 

3 
 
 
 
2 

4 
 
 
 
5 

5 
 
 
 
8 

6 
 
 
 
12 

3. Run a focus group with 
community map assets to 
understand partnership working 
and support  

Aug 
2022 

Ongoing a. A support offer 
developed and 
implemented 

1.Number of assets 
engaged in the partnership 
and supported 
 
Baseline = 60 
 

 
 
 
 
70 

 
 
 
 
80 

 
 
 
 
90 

 
 
 
 
100 

7. Launch new improved 
community map to increase it’s 
awareness and usage across 
Bracknell Forest 

 
 
 

Dec 
2022 

Quarterly 1. Launch event for 
partners  

 
2. Road show to promote 

community map to 
residents 

 
3. Training offer for partners 

 
4. Establish quarterly 

monitoring of the 
community asset map 

 
 
 
 

1. Communications plans 
 
2. Road show locations 

and dates agreed 
 
3. Number of partners 

attending training 
 

Baseline - 0 
 
4. Increase usage of the 

community map, 
tracked through google 
analytics  

 
Baseline: 1461 visits in 
2021/2022 
 
5. Number of assets on 

the community map 
 
Baseline: 326 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2000 
 
 
 
 
 
350 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
40 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3000 
 
 
 
 
 
400 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3500 
 
 
 
 
 
450 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
60 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4000 
 
 
 
 
 
500 
 

34



8. Replace the current paper-
based and manual system to a 
fully integrated digital solution  

May 
22 

Quarterly 1. A digital referral pathway 
with case management 
data capture 
(interventions and 
outcomes) implemented  

2. A quarterly dashboard 
created that to enable 
monitoring of source of 
referrals, demographics 
of clients, primary need, 
baseline status and end 
outcome 

 
 

Indicators 
1. Percentage of 

referrers using JOY to 
make a referral  
Baseline: 80% 

 
2. Number of referrals 

with primary need is 
loneliness/social 
isolation 
Baseline 22% 

 
3. Percentage of clients 

with an improved 
loneliness/or wellbeing 
score. Baseline: 40% 

 
4. Percentage of under 

represented groups 
accessing the service. 
Baseline less than 2% 

 
90% 
 
 
 
 
30% 
 
 
 
 
 
45% 
 
 
 
 
 
3% 

 
93% 
 
 
 
 
35% 
 
 
 
 
 
50% 
 
 
 
 
 
4% 

 
97% 
 
 
 
 
40% 
 
 
 
 
 
55% 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5% 

 
100% 
 
 
 
 
50% 
 
 
 
 
 
60% 
 
 
 
 
 
7% 

9. Work with statutory, voluntary 
and community sector 
organisations to raise 
awareness of the social 
prescribing service and 
encourage appropriate 
referrals  

MMay 
22 

ongoing a) A plan to promote the 
service at various events 
including the launch of 
the community map, 
across council wide 
networks, and external 
providers 
 

b) A provider plan for 
engagement with JOY 
marketplace to 
encourage appropriate 
referrals whilst raising 
the profile of their 
services. 

1. Number of 
events/forums attended by 
social prescribing team 
Baseline: 5 
 
 
 
 
2. Number of organisations 
registering their service on 
the JOY marketplace. 
Baseline: 12 

10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17 

15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
22 

20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
27 

25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
33 

10. Relaunch and promote the 
social prescribing service to 

Oct 
2022 

Quarterly  A communications plan to 
promote the service amongst 
residents with consideration 

Increase in number of 
appropriate self-referrals  
Baseline (8%) 

12% 16% 20% 25% 

35



 

  

residents through various 
channels  

of different engagement 
methods for diverse 
communities 
 

11. Create a network of health and 
wellbeing service practitioners 
to enable shared learning and 
collaborative practice  

May 
2022 

Quarterly A network established with a 
better understanding of 
different practitioner roles 
and clients and inter service 
referrals  

1. Number of network 
events 
Baseline: 2 
 
2. Percentage of 
inappropriate referrals 
reduced tracked through 
the JOY database 
Baseline: 7% inappropriate 
referrals for last qtr. 
 

4 
 
 
 
6% 

6 
 
 
 
5% 

8 
 
 
 
3% 

10 
 
 
 
0% 

36



Priority 4: Keep residents safe from infectious diseases and 
address the long-term impacts of COVID-19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AIMS 
1. To reduce and manage outbreaks of infectious disease across Bracknell Forest  

2. To reduce infectious disease-related morbidity and mortality with reduced numbers of related deaths and hospital admissions 

and inpatients  

3. To establish an engaged community that not only informs local communication and action but also takes responsibility for 

reducing the transmission of COVID-19 and other communicable diseases  

4.To ensure high-risk settings for transmission are engaged and take responsibility for their role in reducing the risk of 

communicable disease infection  

5.To reduce winter-related morbidity and mortality  

6. To reduce the long-term health impacts of COVID-1 

 

 

 

37



Objectives 
1. Review and relaunch the Local Outbreak Management Plan to consider a broad range of infectious disease  

and potential COVID-19 variant(s) of concern. 

2. Deliver the plan’s action plan, including actions around:  

• Engagement and communication  

• Data integration and surveillance  

• Legislation, compliance and enforcement  

• Vaccination  

3. Scope the local health protection response so as to align with national public health system reforms  

4. Plan to promote and enable vaccinations to eligible populations, working with partners to ensure high uptake  

across all ages and communities  

5. Feedback from local communities on how best to engage and communicate the ongoing pandemic response  

in Bracknell Forest  

6.Update the joint winter plan based on national guidance and local modelling 

  

38



Action Plan  
Key Tasks (input) Start 

date 
End date Outputs Indicator and baseline Year 1 

2023 
Year 2 
2024 

Year 3 
2025 

Year 4 
2026 

1. Work with East Berkshire Hub 
and UKHSA lead on a 
framework/plan for a local wider 
outbreak management plan  

Jan 
2023 

July 2023 1. An improved plan post 
covid to ensure health 
protection resilience 
within the system to 
manage outbreaks 

Milestones 
a) Based on lessons 

learnt and the new 
landscape (UKHSA) 
Terms and Reference 
of Heath Protection 
Forum agreed  

b) Health protection 
workplan agreed post 
covid 

c) Clarity on roles and 
responsibilities across 
system agreed linking 
with LA out of hours 
and public protection 
plans  
 

Indicator 
a) Number of outbreaks 

managed effectively  

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

2. In collaboration with 
NHSE/OHID screening leads 
review current quality and 
uptake of national screening 
programmes in Bracknell Forest 
to identify and plan for quality 
improvements and targeted 
work in areas/communities of 
low uptake  

Jan 
2023 

Sept 2023 1.A screening quality 
improvement plan 
developed and 
implemented  

Milestone 
a) A quality and 

performance report 
with 
recommendations for 
improvement agreed 
at the Health 
Protection Forum (Q2 
2023) 

 
Indicator 
a) Screening 

performance 

Milestone 
achieved  

TBA TBA TBA 

39



(coverage and 
uptake) 

b) National screening 
quality standards  

3. Produce reports on uptake of 
national immunisation 
programme showing uptake by 
GP or ward level to identify any 
variation in uptake of childhood 
and other adult vaccinations 
(flu, covid, pneumococcal)  

April 
2023 

August 
2023 

1.Immunisation 
performance report 
produced and presented to 
Health Protection Forum 

Milestone 
a) Report presented to 

Health and Wellbeing 
Board (Q2 2023)  

 
Indicator  
a) National standards  
b) Health inequality gap 

reduction (TBA)  
 

Milestone 
achieved 
 
Baseline 
established 

TBA TBA TBA 

4. Review engagement and 
communications during Covid 
and produce lessons learnt 
report  

Jan 
2023 

April 2023 A report with 
recommendations on 
communications and 
methods to engage with 
local communities on health 
protection  

Milestones 
a) A project plan for 

review agreed at 
Health Protection 
Forum or E Berkshire 
SMG  

b) Plan implemented 
and monitored 
 

Milestone 
achieved 
Milestone 
a)  

TBA TBA TBA 

5. Continue to work with NHS 
infection control team and 
Council Public Protection Team 
to review and improve infection 
risk and improve good practice 
in high risk settings 

Jan 
2023 

Dec 2026 Timely Reports presented 
at Place Committee and 
Health Protection Forum  

Indicator 
a) Number of clinical 

and non-clinical 
settings engaged  

 

Establish 
Baseline 

TBA TBA TBA 

6. Provide assurance to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board on 
adverse weather planning  

Jan 
2023 

Dec 2026 Adverse weather plans 
implemented in a timely 
manner that mitigates 
population health and 
wellbeing impacts  

Indicator 
Timetable on forward 
agenda agreed for 
summer and winter plans 
at HWB board on a yearly 
basis  

Plan presented as per timetable agreed 

7. Review the implementation of 
the NICE guidance on reducing 
health harm from cold homes in 

  A plan to reduce health 
harms from cold homes in 
Bracknell Forest 

Milestone  
Scope of review and 
project plan agreed  

Milestones 
achieved 
  

TBA TBA TBA 

40



Bracknell Forest and make 
recommendations  

Review completed and 
plan to implement 
recommendation agreed 
Implementation plan 
monitored 
 
Indicators  
Reduction in cold homes 
related morbidity  
Reduction in cold homes 
related mortality  

8. Develop and implement a plan 
to mitigate the long term 
impacts of COVID  

Dec 
2022 

Dec 2023 Reduce the long-term 
health and wellbeing 
impacts of Covid  

Milestone 
a) Scope and service 

specification agreed  
b) Appropriate provider 

procured 
c) Contract monitored 

and progress report 
shared 

d) Final report presented 
at HWB Board  

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

 

  

41



Priority 5: Improve years lived with good health and 
happiness 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AIMS 
1. To improve health literacy of cardiovascular risk in target population 

2. To increase the offer and uptake of NHS health checks in target population  

3. To increase the offer and uptake in smoking cessation in target populations 

4. To increase the offer and uptake in weight management in target populations 

5. To increase universal offer of physical activity and healthy eating opportunities offered across all population  

6. To establish a system-wide joint Bracknell Forest healthy workplace programme  

7. To establish a whole-school approach to health in Bracknell Forest 

8. To reduce the variance in early detection, management and treatment for hypertension, diabetes and atrial fibrillation. 

 
OBJECTIVES 
1. A community-led healthy conversations plan developed and implemented.  

2. At-risk target groups identified, using population health management  

42



3. Undertake health equity audits across lifestyle services  

4. Undertake audit of NHS health checks and develop an improvement plan 

5. Develop and implement a system-wide approach to addressing obesity  

6. Develop and implement a healthy settings programme as part of the HiAP approach 

7. Use right care pathways to support practices to level up detection, care and management 

 
ACTION PLAN 

Key Tasks (input) Start 
date 

End date Outputs Indicator and baseline Year 1 
2023 

Year 2 
2024 

Year 3 
2025 

Year 4 
2026 

1. Conduct a rapid evidence 
review including grey literature 
and good practice to 
recommend evidence-based 
practice/methods for increasing 
heath literacy and self care  

Jan 
2023 

Jun 2023 A toolkit based on the 
findings of the review 
for use locally  

Milestone  
a) Scope and service 

specification agreed 
b) An appropriate 

provider procured 
 
Indicator 
TBA 
 

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

2. Map current CVD prevention 
programmes and evaluate the 
effectiveness of the 
programmes to identify good 
practice that can be rolled out 
across the borough 

Dec 
2022 

Mar 2023 A plan to reduce 
variation through roll-
out of good practice 
through shared 
learning  

Milestones 
a) A local task and finish 

group established 
b) A data/information 

capture on good 
practice and 
performance agreed 

c) Analyses and 
evaluation completed  

d) Recommendations for 
roll out of based on 
findings  

 
Indicator  
a) Baseline established 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

43



b) Improvement in 
performance TBA 

3. Adapt and implement the ICS 
CVD prevention plans at place  

Jan 
2022 

Dec 2023 Improved 
communication 
between engagement 
between system and 
place with system 
plans adapted at pace 

Milestones 
a) Targeted campaign 

for health check/ 
Hypertension using 
the hypertension bus 
implemented 

b) Bracknell Forest 
Community 
Pharmacies 
Hypertension work 
programme and 
pathway established. 

 
Indicator  
a) Increase in patients 

on registers with 
controlled 
hypertension  

b) Increase in new 
patients with 
hypertension  

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

4. Undertake health equity audit of 
CVD primary and secondary 
prevention services to inform 
targeted action on CVD and 
diabetes prevention and 
management 

Dec 
2022 

July 2023 Plan to reduce health 
inequalities in 
cardiovascular health 
and diabetes outcomes 

Milestone 
a) Scope and agree a 

health equity plan 
b) Procure an 

appropriate provider  
c) Based on finding plan 

agreed 
 
Indicator 
TBA 
 

Milestone 
achieved 
Indicators 
agreed 

TBA TBA TBA 

5. Review commissioning and 
performance of NHS health 
checks and make 
recommendations for 
improvement  

Dec 
2022 

Sept 
2023 

Plan to improve 
commissioning and 
performance of NHS 
health checks locally  

Milestone 
a) Service specification 

agreed 

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA 
 
 
 
 

TBA 
 
 
 
 

TBA 
 
 
 
 

44



b) Tender and 
procurement process 
completed 

c) Progress reports 
received  

d) Key findings shared 
with stakeholders 

e) Final report received  
 

Indicators 
a) 100% of eligible 

cohort invited for NHS 
Health Check 

b) Increase in number of 
invited cohorts 
receiving a health 
check  

c) Increase in 
appropriate referrals 
to lifestyle services 
from the NHS health 
checks programme 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
invited 
 
TBA 
 
 
 
 
TBA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
invited 
 
TBA 
 
 
 
 
TBA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
invited 
 
TBA 
 
 
 
 
TBA 

6. Co-produce plans for 
prevention of uptake of nicotine 
containing products and 
increase in number of people 
that access and successfully 
quit smoking  

Dec 
2022 

Sept 
2022 

A refreshed tobacco 
control plan 
implemented  

Milestone achieved 
a) Insights on use of 

vaping in bracknell 
forest outside the 
smoking cessation 
pathway from Oxwell 
and other local 
surveys 

b) Review of current 
smoking cessation 
uptake and 
successful completion 
rates completed  

c) Work programme with 
schools on increasing 
awareness of harms 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

45



from nicotine use 
established 

Indicator 
a) Uptake of vaping in 

young people 
(Baseline to be 
established) 

b) Increase in smoking 
quit rates  
 

7. Develop innovative solutions to 
support people with unhealthy 
weights to achieve and 
maintain health weights  

Mar 
2023 

July 2024 Expansion of weight 
management offer to 
reduce current waiting 
lists for wright 
management  

Milestone 
a) A task and finish 

group established 
b) An options appraisal 

of innovative solutions 
undertaken to agree 
recommended 
solutions 

c) Protype implemented 
and evaluated  

Milestone 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

8. Review and evaluate the 
current weight management 
services and establish a weight 
management pathway based 
on NICE guidance (CG189 
updated 2022) 

Mar 
2023 

March 
2024 

Compliance with NICE 
guidance  

Milestone 
a) A place task and 

finish group 
established working 
with ICS group  

b) Gaps analyses 
undertaken  

c) Commissioning 
recommendations 
made to implement 
the guidance 

d) Training and support 
agreed 

 

Milestone 
achieved  

TBA TBA TBA 

9. Map current physical activity 
offer for all ages and diverse 
communities, identify gaps and 
develop a physical activity 
pathway in accordance with 

Oct 
2022 

Dec 2023 NICE guidance and 
CMO guidelines 
implemented in 
Bracknell Forest  

Milestones 
Mapping completed and 
reviewed against the 
NICE guidance and gaps 
identified 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

46



NICE public health guidance to 
enable all residents including 
people with mobility and 
sensory difficulties to meet the 
CMO guidelines on physical 
activity  

A physical activity 
pathway with offers of 
different activities agreed 
Training package agreed  
 
Indicator 
Baseline established on 
offer and uptake  

10. Develop a plan based on whole 
system approach agreement to 
change the key environmental 
issues in Bracknell to create 
healthy environment enabling 
healthy choices 

July 
2022 

July 2023 Key system changes 
agreed  

Milestones 
a) Scope and service 

spec agreed 
b) Procurement process 

for external support 
completed 

c) OHID guidance 
adapted and system 
strategic group 
established with buy-
in from Members 

Milestones 
achieved  

TBA TBA TBA 

11. Develop a plan for the Council 
and the local NHS to be 
exemplar healthy workplaces 
and extend the learning to local 
businesses 

Nov 
2022 

July 2023 Workplaces enable 
employees to be 
physically and mentally 
well  
Increase in number of 
baby friendly settings 
using the UNICEF 
baby friendly standards 

Milestone 
a) Establish a healthy 

workplace group 
working with local 
businesses 

b) Undertake a review 
and process for 
Council to obtain 
accreditation  

c) Baby Friendly settings 
workplan agreed 
 

Indicator  
a) Number of 

workplaces engaged 
with workplace 
healthy charter  

b) Number of settings 
engaged and 

Milestones 
achieved 

TBA TBA TBA 

47



achieved baby 
friendly certificate  

 

48



November 2022

Health and Wellbeing Board –
SEND programme update

49

A
genda Item

 10



2

Programme update

1.Programme health card

2.Project status summaries

3.Key milestone

4.Risks and issues

50



3

SEND workstreams health card

Rationale 

Value proposition still holds true?

• WSOA approved by Ofsted end of June 22

Engagement

Stakeholders bought in?

• DfE review meeting – feedback from head teachers that schools have been engaged and have confidence in the plan
• Request from DfE to share ‘Working Together’ approach to engaging with children, young people and families for their input into 

development of the SEND strategy as an example of good practice
• Membership of project teams agreed for all projects, except Health and Wellbeing, with PCF representatives confirmed
• Agreement to share all governance and reporting templates with colleagues in Slough as Health colleagues identified our approach to 

tracking progress as good practice
• Focus on improving engagement with Capita, with training now confirmed and a meeting with the account manager scheduled

Progress / Schedule
Delivery on target?

• Timescales for some actions have been rescheduled as detailed planning has taken place. These were discussed at the DfE review 
meeting and they accepted our focus has been on getting strong foundations in place

• Traceability matrix has been developed and is in the process of being populated by project teams
• Process to agree ‘what complete looks like’ and arrangements for transition to BAU for all actions underway
• Process mapping tracker has been developed and agreed by the project team

Resource

Secured and able to deliver?

• Lack of dedicated BA resource was significantly impacting progress on process mapping work, but short term resource has now been
secured

• Confirmation of leads for Health and Wellbeing project is reliant on Frimley ICS mapping activity at system and place levels
• Resourcing paper went to Executive on 18 October and the request for additional time limited resource to deliver the WSOA was agreed.

Outcomes

Confidence in target value being 
achieved?

• Data quality continues to be a challenge but work on the DBV programme is underway and should contribute to significant improvements
• Work currently focuses on putting the foundations in place and therefore impact on children and young families is not yet evident or a 

process in place to capture it– this was accepted at the first DfE review meeting This needs to be a focus for the next quarter.

Overall programme status is AMBER

51



Project sponsor – Grainne Siggins  / Operational lead – Cheryl Eyre

4

SEND workstream updates

Project RAG • Key progress Forward look
Strategy and 
communications

• Parent Carer Forum (PCF) engagement ongoing 
across several areas.   

• Draft Comms Charter is being reviewed with PCF 
and Frimley ICS. All 3 parties have signed up to the 
charter.

• An infographic to raise awareness of different 
sources of support has been co-produced with the 
PCF and promoted via social media channels

• New service standards launched on 3 October
• Short Breaks newsletter has been launched with 

positive feedback received from parents and carers
• Draft of new SEND strategy underway with early 

version circulated to small group for content input
• Initial meetings conducted to discuss options for the 

Local Offer platform
• New family newsletter has been launched
• Work has begun on reviewing and updating top 10 

standard letter templates

• SEND strategy – add content from working groups 
and circulate for review.

• Standard letters – complete review of the top 10 
letters and make available to SEND team (manually 
attached to emails).  Engage ICT App Support team 
to enable capability to embed standard letters in 
Capita One (improving operational efficiencies). 

• Wider Strategy Set – identify strategy document 
owners to review and update documents

• Local Offer - . produce options paper and submit for 
decision regarding options (both internal and external 
solutions).

• Family News Letter – copy to be circulated to 
educational settings, charities and IASS, with request 
to pass on to communities; 

52



Project sponsor – Tracey Faraday-Drake / Operational lead – Manjit Hogston

5

SEND workstream updates

Project RAG Key progress Forward look
Health and wellbeing • Initial reviews of SLAs for SaLT, Physio and OT 

completed, and gaps identified. Circulated to 
stakeholders for initial comments, final analysis and 
input required from BHFT.

• Consistent attendance at panels by health with 94% 
attendance (13 out of 14 panels June 22 to Sept 22) 

• Integrated Therapies Project work continues to be 
supported by ATTAIN. Partners across East 
Berkshire have been working together to redesign 
and improve the integrated therapies service 
provision offer. There is a high-level agreement in 
principle to move towards a graduated/village model 
of provision and strengthening Provider 
Collaborative.

• Mapping and accessibility of support available, and 
what resources are accessible to CYP, parents, and 
carers awaiting an OT appointment complete and 
reviewed against neighbouring Las

• Survey to capture experiences of CYP educated out 
of area has been drafted

• Full review of impact of health attending panel will take 
place by the ICS in November 2022. 

• Resource to be developed to explain the NHS clinical 
definition of mental health crisis in a way that is widely 
accepted and understood

• Undertake a deep dive into several mental health crisis 
cases to consider early flags53



Project sponsor – Grainne Siggins  / Operational lead – Thom Wilson

6

SEND workstream updates

Project RAG Key progress Forward look
Data monitoring and 
oversight

• Second draft of SIPB data dashboard developed 
based on feedback from September meeting

• Weekly meetings held with Newton Europe on 
Delivering Better Value in SEND programme, key 
stakeholders engaged and first workshops attended

• Themes for consideration beginning to emerge from 
DBV work – these will be reviewed in the November 
workshops

• New process for monitoring part time timetables has 
been developed and has been rolled out to schools 
this term, with a newly formed oversight group in 
place

• Comprehensive review of all content on Local Offer 
website completed

• Conduct dummy run of SEN2 return based on October 
census data, and work to resolve data gaps and errors in 
advance of January census and SEN2 return

• Second set of Delivering Better Value workshops booked 
for early November

• Undertake analysis to understand current approaches to 
graduated approach within schools – to be picked up by 
Audit and QA working group

54



Project sponsor – Grainne Siggins  / Operational lead – Neil Hoskinson

7

SEND workstream updates

Project RAG Key progress Forward look
Process and systems • Membership of for working groups and task and 

finish groups under project team established and 
dates agreed. Initial working group meetings held

• 10 of the 34 known processes have been 
identified as key and BAs have been meeting 
with Ops staff to capture the flows.  Meetings 
will continue into w/c 31 Oct, with scheduled 
meeting dates 

• A process mapping progress tracker has been 
developed

• Capita One – Training session 1.1 conducted 
(28 attendees).  Capita Best Value Review 
report reviewed by PM, focus areas identified for 
discussion with BFC App Support team.  ICT 
have re-introduced the Capita Change Board.

• SEND Handbook – team development session 
has taken place and a draft document has been 
started – due to be ready for sharing by 7 
November.

• Ongoing process flow capture. Update of process tracker 
and review to identify any processes that may have been 
missed.

• System and data mapping activity to be scheduled.
• Conduct data assessment – review data capture, storage, 

use and quality to be assessed across all impacted teams.
• Training session 1.2 to be confirmed and calendar 

invites to be issued (targeting Thursday 10 Nov 2022, 
awaiting confirmation from Capita).

• A/c Mgr to provide guidance regarding level of support 
and platform improvements.

• Meetings scheduled with ICT team for next week 
regarding Capita One Change Board ToR, attendees 
and how change requests are raised with Capita

• Data mapping activity to be scheduled. Data 
assessment (quality) review to be planned.   Data 
storage (inside and outside Capita One) and quality to 
be reviewed with all impacted teams.

• Capita One SEND Portal module demo on hold, team 
to focus on addressing core tasks (data cleansing; 
basic functionality and user admin).

55



8

SEND workstream risks and issues

R or I Project Description RAG Mitigation and path to ‘green’ RAG
Risk Strategy and 

communications
Existing Local Offer website platform does 
not meet current or future need

Short term look to optimise current technical 
capability and longer term consider replacing 
platform used to host Local Offer

Issue Health and 
wellbeing 

Approach to how to address system wide 
WSOA deliverables that appear in Bracknell 
Forest WSOA need to be agreed between LA 
and ICB

Ops lead and PM to meet with Ali to identify and 
agree the best approach 

Issue Data monitoring and 
oversight

Data integrity and quality impacts on ability 
to forecast effectively

Dummy run of SEN2 return to address data quality 
issues
Improve compliance with Capita One use
Participation in the DBV for SEND programme, with 
a specific focus on Module 1

56



9

SEND workstream risks and issues

R or I Project Description RAG Mitigation and path to ‘green’ RAG
Issue Process and 

operational systems
Lack of dedicated BA resource is significantly 
impacting progress on process mapping 
activity

Short term resource secured from other teams and 
projects to support delivery. Funding agreed for full 
time Business Manager for one year.

Issue Detailed knowledge of Capita One 
platform is limited and presents a 
significant dependency key individuals, 
who are already stretched.

Platform admin rights passed to operational 
teams.
Capita One training plan and creation of ‘Platform 
Champions’ for all user groups.57



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes from Previous Meeting
	8 Health and Wellbeing Strategy Delivery Plans
	To:	Bracknell Forest Health and Wellbeing Board
	Appendix 1 Outcomes list JHWBS paper 7th Sept
	Appendix 2 Health and Wellbeing Strategy delivery plans -Draft(1)

	10 SEND Programme Update
	 November 2022�
	Programme update
	SEND workstreams health card
	SEND workstream updates
	SEND workstream updates
	SEND workstream updates
	SEND workstream updates
	SEND workstream risks and issues
	SEND workstream risks and issues


